
 
 

 

 
Meeting of:   

 
Communities, Regeneration and Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: Thursday, 26th November, 2020 
Time: 6.00 pm. 
Venue: Zoom 

 
This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by 
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 

Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page No 

1   Apologies   

 To receive any apologies for absence.  

2   Declarations of Interest   

 Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 

or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 

those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 

of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

 

3   Urgent Items of Business   

 To determine whether there are any additional items of business 

which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 

be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

4   Minutes  4 - 9 

 To consider the Minutes of the Meeting of the Committee held on 24th 

September and 18th November 2020. 

 

5   Highway Maintenance Term Service Contract - Progress Report: 

April-October 2020  

 

 Head of Highways to report 

 

 

Public Document Pack



6   The Challenge of Climate Change in Rochdale  10 - 21 

 Presentation by Climate Change Consultant attached  

7   Economy Directorate Plans 2020-21: Quarter 2 Performance 

Update  

22 - 50 

 To scrutinise the Economy Directorate Plans 2020-21 - Quarter 2 

Performance Indicators 

 

8   Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21: Quarter 2 Performance 

Update  

51 - 67 

 To scrutinise the Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21: Quarter 2 

Performance Indicators 

 

9   Exclusion of Press and Public   

 To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 

part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 

Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 

likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 

Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 

interest would not be served in publishing the information.  

 

10   Rochdale Market  68 - 72 

 Report of the Internal Audit Service  

 

Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Members 
Councillor Tom Besford Councillor Jacqui Beswick 
Councillor Susan Emmott Councillor Andy Kelly 
Councillor Daniel Meredith Councillor Angela Smith 
Councillor June West Councillor Peter Williams 
Councillor Peter Winkler Councillor Sameena Zaheer 
 

For more information about this meeting, please contact  
Peter Thompson 
01706 924715 
peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 



COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
MINUTES OF MEETING 

Thursday, 24 September 2020 
 

PRESENT: Councillor Meredith (Chair); Councillors Besford, Beswick, Kelly, 
West and Zaheer 
 
OFFICERS: M. Widdup (Director of Neighbourhoods), F. Crompton 
(Neighbourhoods Directorate), M. Garraway (Committee & Constitutional 
Services Manager) 
 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Susan Emmott and Councillor 
Williams 
 

45 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

46 MINUTES 
Resolved 
That the minutes of the meeting of the Communities, Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 20 February 2020, be 
approved as a correct record. 
 

47 RBH - FIRE CONCERNS 
The Chair introduced the item which had been brought as a result published 
by Rochdale Boroughwide Housing (RBH) on 8 September 2020 which 
highlighted defects in the compartmental cladding on each of the buildings in 
College Bank.  The defects led to concerns that fire could spread through the 
blocks of flats.  The Chief Executive of RBH had been invited to attaend the 
meeting, however the Chief Executive of RBH had declined and suggested 
that the Director of Neighbourhoods should be in a position to present instead.  
The Chair set out that this would be inappropriate as the Director of 
Neighbourhoods was not an employee of RBH nor familiar with the specifics 
of this situation at College Bank. 
 
The Chair also sought to clarify if the concerns with the fire safety of RBH 
properties were historical (pre-1998) and whether they were compliant with 
the regulations that existed at the time the Council entered into the agreement 
with RBH.  The Chair sought to understand what rigorous fire assessment 
were being undertaken with the other properties within RBH’s portfolio and 
what measures were in place within those properties in the short term.  
 
Furthermore, Members of the Committee sought clarification in relation to 
what the ‘waking watch’ was, their role and how qualified those undertaking 
the roles are; in light of the recent concerns on the cladding.  There was a lack 
of clarity as to what happens next, what are the associated costs were with 
the ‘waking watch’ and who bore the cost.  Members expressed concerns that 
RBH had failed to engage with residents in relation to the longer term plan to 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



address the defects.  Assurances were south as to other RBH properties 
across the Borough and what measures were in place to ensure that those 
properties had measures in place to mitigate the identified risks at College 
Bank.   
 
The Chair referred to questions which had been raised with Members by 
residents of College Bank and members of the public.  Those concerns 
related to: 

 What comprehensive Fire Risk Assessments had been undertaken 
since the Grenfell disaster? 

 A lack of engagement by RBH with residents as to the extent of the 
risk. 

 A lack of detail within the Fire Safety Policy. 

 That the Asbestos Policy, the Electrical Safety Policy and the Extreme 
Weather Policy are all now out of date. 

 The Health and Safety Framework document is now overdue its review 
by nearly a year. 

 A lack of understanding on the role of the ‘Waking Watch’. 

 A recent fire within a flat at College Bank and that the property had not 
been repaired. 

 
The Director of Neighbourhoods provided assurance as to properties within 
Rochdale BC’s portfolio setting out how each property was assessed and the 
policies which underpin fire safety. 
 
Resolved 
That the Chief Executive of RBH be requested to respond to the issues raised 
by Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, as well as residents, 
and be invited to address the Committee at a future meeting. 
 

48 WARDLE AND SMALLBRIDGE FOOTBALL CLUB 
Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods, setting 
out a request for funding for a football pitch in Wardle.  The report had been 
referred to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee by Cabinet for the 
Committee to consider how the Council approaches contracting and pricing of 
similar contracts. 
 
Members were informed as to the background of the project and the issues 
that had led to it not being delivered within budget and a subsequent request 
to the Pennines Township Committee for additional funding.   
 
Members sought clarification on the process for contract negotiations, if they 
were agreed as fixed price contracts and whether clauses where included to 
protect the Council when a contractor was unable to complete a project within 
the agreed pricing. 
 
Members expressed concerns that where there had been problems with 
estimation of costs that additional funding was being sought from Township 
funds.   In instances where projects had not been delivered within estimated 

Page 4



costs additional funding should be sort from the Directorate or the contractor 
rather than Township, 
 
Resolved 
1. That the Chief Finance Officer be requested to provide details for 

Members as to what mechanisms are in place to protect Township funds 
should an agreed contract not be delivered at the specified price. 

2. That STaR procurement be invited to a future meeting to address issues in 
relation to the agreement and approval of contracts.  

 
49 INCLUSIVE SKILLS, WORK AND HEALTH PLAN 2021-2023 

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Economy setting out the 
Inclusive Skills, Work and Health Plan 2021-2023.   
 
The Plan recognises the co-dependency between health and employment, 
and the role skills plays in securing better employment and earning better 
wages.  The Plan aims to maximise the benefits for Rochdale of the significant 
budgets devolved to Greater Manchester, recognises that this brings 
opportunities as well as challenges. 
The Plan outlines 8 priorities and what success would look like for each. 

1. Adults with learning difficulties and mental health issues 
2. Long term unemployed 
3. Digital Inclusion 
4. Adult Education (18yr +) 
5. Higher Education (higher level apprenticeships and degrees) 
6. People in low skilled low paid employment 
7. Employers 
8. Making every contact count (RBC/NHS) 

 
Members sought clarification on the impact of Covid-19 and how different 
ways of working required alternative skills whilst offering an opportunity to 
develop new skills to take advantage of jobs outside the borough. 
 
Resolved 
That the report be noted and supported for implementation. 
 

50 WORK PROGRAMME 2020/2021 
Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Resources setting out 
the Committee work programme for the municipal year. 
 
Members were informed that a study group consisting of Members from each 
of the three overview and Scrutiny Committees would be established to 
consider the Council’s recruitment policy and member development. 
 
Resolved 
That the report be noted. 
 

Page 5



COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
MINUTES OF MEETING 

Wednesday, 18 November 2020 
 

PRESENT:  Councillor Meredith; Councillors Besford, Beswick, 
Susan Emmott, Kelly, Smith, West, Williams and Zaheer 
 
OFFICERS: M. Robinson (Assistant Director – Economy), P. Moore (Head of 
Planning) and M. Garraway (Committee and Constitutional Services Manager) 
 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Winkler 
 

51 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

52 2040 TRANSPORT DELIVERY PLAN/DISTRICT LOCAL 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 
Consideration was given to a report of the Cabinet Member for Quality of 
Place / Director of Economy setting out a refreshed version of the long-term, 
statutory local transport plan - the Greater Manchester Transport Strategy 
2040 - and a final version of Our Five-Year Delivery Plan (2020-2025); setting 
out the practical actions planned to deliver the Strategy over the next 5 years. 
In addition, ten new Local Implementation Plans had also been prepared (one 
for each Greater Manchester council) setting out transport priorities and 
smaller interventions to achieve these ambitions at a local level. 
 
Members of the Committee sought clarification on matter relating to: 

 The relationship with the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework 

 The promotion of cycling and walking routes and how they would be 
promoted. 

 Metrolink access to Middleton and Heywood. 

 Stakehill/Slattocks train station improvements 

 That the document be amended to the reference for the removal of 
roundabouts in Middleton. 

 Problems with moving to electrical vehicles and a lack of infrastructure 
for recharging. 

 Issues with railway users from outside Greater Manchester. 

 Plans to improve existing capacity on public transport networks in the 
short term where demand exists but a running under capacity.  

 
Resolved 

1. That Cabinet be recommended to approve to endorse the refreshed 
Greater Manchester Transport Strategy 2040 and the final version of 
Our Five-Year Delivery Plan. 

2. That Cabinet be recommended  to approve the publication of the 
supporting 

3. Local Implementation Plan as an appendix to Our Five-Year Delivery 
Plan. 

Page 6



4. That Cabinet be recommended to add a delegation to the Director of 
Economy in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Quality of Place, 
to enable minor amendments prior to submission to the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority. 

 
53 GREATER MANCHESTER SPATIAL FRAMEWORK 

Consideration was given to a report of the Cabinet Member for A Thriving 
Economy / Director of Economy setting out proposals for public consultation 
Greater Manchester Spatial Framework (GMSF).   
 
The Cabinet Member for A Thriving Economy set out some background 
information providing an overview of what the GMSF 2020 is and why it was 
being produced as well as highlighting the key proposals for housing, 
employment and infrastructure in Rochdale and the justification for the 
approach taken.  Members were advised of the key benefits that the GMSF 
2020 would bring to Rochdale. 
 
Greater Manchester local authorities had worked collaboratively on the 
preparation of the Spatial Framework.  This document will provide a policy 
framework to guide development across the City Region up to 2037.  It will 
also provide a context for the preparation by individual authorities of updated 
Local Plans.  Previous versions of the GMSF had been consulted on resulting 
in amendments.   
 
Consultation will take place via a number of mechanisms including online or 
via libraries within the borough.  This consultation will be open for eight 
weeks. 
 
The Cabinet Member for A Thriving Economy addressed key points raised by 
Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee: 

 Flooding mitigation for proposed sites, specifically issues previously 
faced in Littleborough.  

 What planning has been undertaken to address a lack of primary 
school places in the area, as well as GP places available, particularly in 
relation to new housing sites.   

 Increase of congestion in town and village centres across the borough. 

 Impact on the ability for Greater Manchester to meet emissions targets. 

 The amount of Green Belt that would be lost within the borough.  

 The accessibility, effectiveness and viability of consultation during a 
pandemic. 

 Alternatives to providing opportunities for creating jobs and improving 
economic prospects within the borough. 

 Impact on existing residents of building new homes on sites of local 
importance. 

 Impact of the forthcoming Planning White Paper and its impact on the 
GMSF. 

 The cost of developing on existing brownfield sites. 

 Benefits of having a local plan as opposed to a regional plan. 

 How the number of houses allocated to each site had been formulated. 

Page 7



 
Resolved 
That the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



The challenge of 

Climate Change in Rochdale

Presentation to Communities, Regeneration and Environment 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee, 26 November 2020

Mark Bramah, Climate Change Consultant

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 6



1. Getting to net zero – what 

does it mean for Rochdale?

P
age 10



Rochdale borough – % tonnes of carbon dioxide 

equivalent (tCO₂e) by end use

Source: Scatter Cities a local authority 
focussed emissions tool

21.60%

40.81%

13.39%

22.82%

1.38%

Rochdale Council 
Emissions 2018/19

Electricity

Gas

Council vehicles

Street Lighting

Other

Total footprint 11016.35 tonnes 

CO2e  

Source: Rochdale Council’s GM Carbon reporting against the 

GMCA 5 Year Environment Plan.

P
age 11



Rochdale borough – getting to net zero by 2038

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

1,400,000

2020 2025 2030 2038

Rochdale Borough Comparison of Co2 emissions pathways  

Rochdale base ambition Scatter 2038 trajectory Rochdale net zero carbon

P
age 12



2. Developing a Climate 

Change Action Plan

P
age 13



Climate Change governance framework

P
age 14



U.N Sustainable Development Goals (SDG’s)

P
age 15



Climate Change Action Plan – Outline of approach

Each workstream

• Objectives

• Actions

• Co-benefits

• Carbon reductions

• Timescales

• Costs/savings

• Opportunities

P
age 16



Work streams - examples of current activity

Public Estate

• Public Sector 

Decarbonisation Scheme 

(PSDS)

• £140k of funding through 

successful GMCA bid to 

Salix Low Carbon Skills 

Fund.

• Low carbon heat, Solar 

PV and LED Lighting.

• 17 public buildings  

including No.1 Riverside, 

Leisure Centres and 

schools

Housing

• Working with Planning to 

develop a model for 

internal wall insulation. 

• Bid in for Green Grants 

Programme through GM. 

Programme of £460k 

which should benefit 80 

properties with solid wall 

insulation. 

• Energy Works (our CIC) 

have 5 qualified Green 

Doctors who contact 

over 2,000 residents per 

year re: carbon/energy 

efficiency issues. 

Transport & Travel

• Consultation on the 

Clean Air Plan for 

Greater Manchester and 

emissions standards.

• Rochdale bidding for 

funding through GM for 

£175k Government 

Funding for Walking and 

cycling.

P
age 17



Workstreams – examples of current activity cont…

Industry & 

commercial

• Sustainability 

Champion from 

local business. 

• Eco Business 

scheme launched 

in Jan 2020 Around 

70+ businesses 

signed up to the 

pledge. 

• Supporting 

renewable energy 

for Council’s 

business portfolio.

Energy & 

Consumption

• Planning 

approval granted 

for 5 MW Solar 

farm at Chamber 

House, Heywood 

match funded 

through ERDF.

• Strategy paper 

on Local 

Electricity 

Supply.

Natural Environment

• Involved in the 

Northern Forest City 

of Trees project 

planting. Some land 

has already been 

identified at Wardle 

(Ashbrook). 

• Natural Flood 

Management Project 

- Planting at Summit 

Quarry

Voluntary & 

Community

• Working with 

Action Together 

• Carbon Literacy 

Project 

• Research on a 

Citizens Assembly

P
age 18



Overview and Scrutiny

The implementation of the action plan will be overseen in a number of

ways:

• Our performance - Monitoring and progress against the actions and

the latest available Council direct carbon emissions data will be

undertaken by the Climate Emergency Working Group.

• Overview and Scrutiny - The important role of O&S is to scrutinise the 

Climate Change Action Plan and to ensure that the Council is 

meeting its aims and objectives set out in the plan to work towards net 

zero carbon by 2038.

P
age 19



mark@municipia.co.uk

07858 465003

Mark.Bramah@Rochdale.Gov.UK

Mark Bramah

Climate Change Consultant

P
age 20



 

Report to Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

 

Date of Meeting 26th November 2020 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Regeneration, Business, 
Skills & Employment 

Report Author Ben Jorgensen 
Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Economy Directorate Plans 2020-21: Quarter 2 Performance Update 
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. To report progress at the end of Quarter 2 (1st July - 30th September 2020) 

towards achievement of the targets contained in the Economy Directorate 
Plan 2020-21. 

 

Recommendation 

 
2. Members are asked to review the information contained within the report and 

the appendices 
 
 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. 
 
 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
3.4 

In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, 
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be reported 
to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter.  
 
The Quarter 2 progress report for the Economy Directorate is attached at 
Appendix 1. Actions within each appendix have been colour coded in 
accordance with the following criteria 
 
Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target 
date 
Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the 
target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control  
Green: Action completed by the target date  
Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track 
 
The appendix includes a commentary against actions that are showing red, 
amber or purple. 
 
Appendix 2 provides information on the Q2 performance of Rochdale 

 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



Development Agency. 
 

 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4. 
 
 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5 

Economy Directorate Plan 2020-21 Progress 
 
Performance Overview 
 
100% (11) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2020-21 are 
currently ongoing. The chart below shows the overall performance of the 
Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter2.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Quarter 2 Summary 
 
During Q1/Q2 2628 residents received employability support from the 
Council's Employment Links Service and 281 secured new jobs.  A total of 
282 new jobs were created by RDA assisted companies or projects and 149 
jobs safeguarded. However, the full impact of the COVID 19 pandemic on the 
Borough’s employment rate figure has yet to be felt.  A new Skills, Work and 
Health Plan was agreed by Cabinet.   
 
10 of the Councils 11 new build industrial units scheme on Kingsway, Logic 
were let.  Works to build units on the former Bradfern site, Oldham Road were 
delayed but will now start in October 2020.   
 
The Rochdale Riverside scheme opened in April 2020 with further lettings 
announced. Funding was secured from the GMCA Brownfield Land for 
remediation of the Phase 2 site.  Works to commence in Q3. A Future High 
Streets Fund Bid was submitted for Rochdale Town Centre in July. The Stage 
2 lottery bid for Rochdale Town Hall was lodged in May with a decision due in 
October 2020. 
 
The Borough’s 10 year Growth Plan and Rail Corridor Strategy were 

Page 22



 
 
 
4.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.7 
 
 
 
4.8 
 
 
 
 
4.9 
 
 
4.10 
 
 
4.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.12 
 
 
 
 
 
4.13 
 
 

successfully launched.  These have since formed the basis for several 
external funding bids.  
 
A total of £31,386,000 of devolved GM funding was secured in Q1 and Q2. 
These included £10.5m of Mayor's Cycle Challenge Fund for the Rochdale - 
Castleton link, £10.3m for Junction 19 link road, £4m from Brownfield Land 
fund for Riverside Phase 2 and Royle Road, Castleton, £2m for Chamber 
House Solar Farm, £700,000 for fire station offices, £200,000 skills funding, 
£260,000 GM Stations Alliance and £50,000 for the Heywood tram - train 
pathfinder.  A further £13.5m was secured from the Get Britain Building Fund 
for South Heywood link road and Kingsway loop road schemes.  A further £1m 
of Towns Fund was secured for the Fire station offices. 
 
To date over £800,000 secured from grants and donations to the East 
Lancashire Railway's survival fund, including £280,000 of lottery heritage 
funding secured with Council support.  
 
A Development Agreement was signed with Russell Homes in July 2020 for 
the delivery of the M62 Junction 19 link road . The main contractor, Robert 
Sisk & Sons has been appointed. Preliminary work will commence in Autumn 
2020.   
 
Masterplans for the regeneration of land around Rochdale, Castleton and 
Littleborough stations and Heywood Town Centre have been completed.  
 
The Council/RDA secured a developer partner to bring forward a residential 
development on the Central Retail Park site.   
 
Agreed rent increases for the Council managed industrial assets were put on 
hold due to COVID 19. The priority has been to support tenants during this 
time, including rent deferrals to preserve income. Extensive support is being 
provided to tenants including rent deferrals where appropriate. Despite this, 
rents for the first quarter has now been fully recovered and over 90% 
recovered at end of Q2. The Council’s managed workspaces were closed to 
all but key working organisations from 25 March to 30 June. One tenant 
vacated as a result of Covid restrictions. Over 90% occupancy sustained but 
income levels were affected in the short term by rent reductions provided to 
tenants. 
 
As a result of the current pandemic, the Council has been unable to secure 
third party lettings of Number One Riverside. So far, no suitable commercial 
investment opportunities have been identified  
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
Not applicable 

 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 

Page 23



5. None 

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. None  

  

 Consultation 

 
7. Not applicable 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. Appendix 1 -  Economy 
Directorate Plan 2020/21 Q2 
 
Appendix 2 - RDA Performance 
Report Q2 
 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale OL16 1XU 

 

For Further Information Contact: Ben Jorgensen, , 
ben.jorgensen@rochdale.gov.uk 

 

Page 24



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  1  Of  11 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

 

E2001 Increase local employment 31 March 2021   78% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

E2001.A 
Support people who are out of work with face to face employment support through Employment Links 
and Working Well contracts.- target figure 5000 borough residents 

31 March 2021   52% 

In Q2 1,432 borough residents have had employability support from the council’s, Employment Links Team, 157 have secured new jobs and 313 have completed courses 
in response to employer demand. Working Well (GMCA commissioned service in the borough) has not yet provided Q2 data but in Q1 27 residents with health conditions 
were helped with 10 getting new job and 2 progressing to a higher wage level within new jobs, which is one of the aims for the programme 

E2001.B 
Promote and develop the ‘Get Rochdale Working’ social media outlets to widen the take up of local 
support. Target of 5500 members 

31 March 2021   100% 

By the end of Q2 the annual target was exceeded with 5749 members of the Get Rochdale Working Facebook page, which promotes jobs, training and volunteering 
opportunities in a very accessible way for job seekers. 

E2001.C Provide a free local recruitment service to 35 local employers, particularly inward investors 31 March 2021   100% 

In Q2 Employment Links has supported 15 more employers with free recruitment services particularly in the care and logistics sectors including an inward investor from 
Bolton. 

E2001.D 
Provide 1:1 support through the Single Point of Access in Economic Affairs for all borough resident or 
employer queries relating to skills, employment and health – target 520 unique enquiries. 

31 March 2021   100% 

The Single Access Point is a single email address and telephone number for individuals (jobsandskills@rochdale.gov.uk) and single point of access for businesses 
(business.support@rochdale.gov.uk) which makes it very easy to contact the council and partners via one email or phone call. The total of unique contacts in Q2 were 457 
which together with the Q1 number, now exceeds the annual target. A significant number of calls are in relation to the economic impact of Covid on both businesses and 
individuals, particularly those that fall through the gaps of government support. 

E2001.E 
Talk English: Provide Talk English training to 450 learners. Recruit, provide training and assessment for 
43 volunteer tutors. Secure external funding for Talk English in 2020/21 and beyond 

31 December 2020   33% 

P
age 25



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  2  Of  11 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

The Talk English Programme is continuing mainly virtually with 1 to 1 assessments that are required to ascertain language levels being conducted in covid secure ways. Q2 
is the normally the quarter with the lowest activity due to training being in term time only. However, the MHCLG funding will fund 150 learners to be assessed and trained 
before the end of March. Teaching materials and the curriculum design completed in Q2 will reflect the borough's priorities and will include health promotion, recycling, 
employment and financial management. The project has been able to provide paid employment to eight former volunteer tutors to deliver training via zoom. 

E2001.F Complete the 2 year Inclusive Skills, Work and Health Plan for the Borough 31 March 2021   100% 

Cabinet approved the Plan in September. Awaiting dates for the CCG and LCO Boards. A detailed action plan with targets will be complete by the end of the year. It was 
agreed to reduce the timespan for the plan to 2 years to reflect the short term nature of many of the funding sources for employment and skills. 

E2001.G 
Attract new businesses by commencing the development of new industrial units at Kingsway Business 
Park and Bradfearns (Oldham Road) 

31 March 2021   50% 

Expressions of interest have been issued to contractors to assess the construction market before progressing with the tender process for the Bradferns scheme. 
Discussions continuing concerning the medium sized unit scheme at Plot G. Kingsway Logic, all units are now occupied or legally committed. 

E2001.H Secure 90% occupation of the Kingsway logic scheme 31 March 2021   100% 

90% - which is 10 of 11 units let at Logic, Kingsway. 

E2001.I Attract funding to repurpose the upper floor of Maclure Road Fire Station building as office space 31 March 2021   100% 

A £1m Towns Fund accelerator grant will support the works and has to be spent by end of March 2021 

E2001.J Deliver the 4 Pilot Digital Skills projects to groups likely to be most affected by COVID 19 31 March 2021   50% 

Of the 4 digital skills pilots 2 have started and these are with 9 organisation supporting part of the community to Access digital support for job applications and become 
more digitally confident and the second project has provided Digital kit to be loaned out via a group of 8 VCO’s to support their client groups.  

          

E2002 Create new jobs and safeguard jobs 31 March 2021   70% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

P
age 26



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  3  Of  11 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

E2002.A Create minimum 250 new jobs through Business engagement / liaison with existing businesses 31 March 2021   100% 

A total of 261 new jobs created in Quarter 2 by RDA assisted companies or projects. 

E2002.B Protect minimum 350 jobs which are at risk in local businesses through engagement liaison 31 March 2021   41% 

A total of 143 jobs were safeguarded by RDA assisted companies. 

          

E2003 Co-deliver a portfolio of target figure 50 companies across the Borough for an Account 
Management strategy for Local Businesses through visits to businesses. 

31 March 2021   75% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

E2003.A 
Co-deliver a portfolio of target figure 50 companies across the Borough for an Account Management 
strategy for Local Businesses through visits to businesses. 

31 March 2021   50% 

23 businesses contacted with 11 of these being F2F visits. Some businesses new to the account management programme as contact had been established following the 
discretionary grant scheme. Hosted a Zoom event to promote electric vehicles in conjunction with TfGM 

E2003.B 
Consult with100 businesses per annum through Place Board Ambassadors scheme/Deliver up to 4 
events per annum, one each quarter 

31 March 2021   75% 

The next Ambassador event will be held on 14th October with GM Mayor Andy Burnham. So far 200 people have registered for the event. 

E2003.C £30m of public & private sector investment generated by assisted projects 31 March 2021   100% 

The Q1 figure is £57m, which is for Rochdale Riverside. 

          

E2004 Promote and say yes to good development 31 March 2021   41% 

          

P
age 27



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  4  Of  11 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

E2004.A 
Engage private sector to bring forward brownfield land for housing across the Borough e.g. Akzo 
Nobel, British Vita, Carcraft, 

31 March 2021   50% 

Homes England has reached an agreement to dispose of the Carcraft site for new housing with the dedication of land for a new primary school. Planning application 
expected in Q3. A planning application is also expected in Q4 for the British Vita site in Middleton. Homes England to select a developer partner for Akzo in early 2021 
with a planning application to then follow. 

E2004.B 
Support submission of reserved matters application(s) for phases of Junction 19 South Heywood 
development 

31 December 2020   50% 

Planning applications to support the commencement of work on the new Junction 19 link road and for reserved matters approval for employment space and new housing 
are expected in late 2020. 

E2004.C Secure minimum of 460 new housing completions 31 March 2021   50% 

Annual target – this will be reported in Q4/year end. 

E2004.D Adopt Castleton and Rochdale Station Gateway Supplementary Planning Documents 31 December 2020   50% 

Ward Members and the GM Stations Alliance Board have agreed the draft Masterplans for Castleton and Rochdale Station Gateway which are being drafted into 
Supplementary Planning Documents for consultation in late 2020 

E2004.E Publish Interim Position Statements for S106 Contributions 31 December 2020   25% 

S106: Work suspended as will now be aligned to work on new local plan. 

E2004.F Adopt new Enforcement Plan 31 December 2020   25% 

Adopt new enforcement plan: Work has yet to start on this. Due to a surge in new enforcement cases the service has been focused on tackling high enforcement 
caseload. 

          

E2005 Create vibrant Town Centres 31 March 2021   58% 

P
age 28



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  5  Of  11 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

E2005.A Produce annual action plan for Rochdale Town Centre Delivery Plan 30 June 2020   75% 

Action plan has been produced and has been updated. In the process of adding some detailed work to the document. 

E2005.B Heritage Action Zone – complete South Parade works 31 March 2021   40% 

Public Realm works completed Q4 2019/2019. Planning Permission achieved September 2020. Works out to tender October 2020. Expected works start on site January 
2021. Completion July 2021. 

E2005.C 
Secure developer partner and detailed planning permission for Phase 1 housing on Central Retail Park 
site 

31 December 2020   50% 

PCSA signed & series of design workshops arranged for Neighbourhood Rochdale. Unit mix and layout to be reviewed. 

E2005.D Adopt Rochdale Station Gateway Masterplan and Delivery Plan 31 December 2020   50% 

Draft Supplementary Planning Document will be issued for consultation during Q3. 

E2005.E 
Agree Town Centre Masterplans for Heywood, Middleton and Littleborough and explore funding 
strategies 

31 December 2020   50% 

Littleborough Masterplan: the masterplan was completed and presented to Ward Members and the GM station alliance. Work taking place to review viability of proposals 
for re-engagement with members and local businesses. This will be presented to Members for approval as a Supplementary Planning Document. Heywood Masterplan: a 
Draft has been presented to Members and will be formally presented to Township for approval. Middleton Masterplan presented to members and highways interventions 
discussed. 

E2005.F Complete enabling works for Rochdale Riverside Phase 2 and submit a detailed planning application 31 March 2021   50% 

• The enabling works contract will start on site in mid-October.  
• RIBA Stage 2 designs are now complete for the main scheme (residential, hotel, apartments). Cabinet approval secured to continue detailed design through to planning 
submission. 
• Delivery and funding options are being considered 

P
age 29



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  6  Of  11 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

E2005.G 
Adopt a food and beverage strategy for Rochdale, Heywood, Middleton and Littleborough town 
centres 

31 December 2020   50% 

 
This will be progressed following reopening of food and drink establishments as we come out of lockdown. 

E2005.H Submit application for Future High Streets Fund for Rochdale town centre 31 July 2020   100% 

The Future High Streets Fund bid was submitted prior to the deadline of 31st July 2020.   A decision on whether Rochdale’s bid has been successful or not is expected in 
Autumn 2020.   
 

          

E2006 Make the most of our built, natural and historic environment 31 March 2021   58% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

E2006.A Consult on public realm designs for Town Hall Square 30 September 2020   50% 

• Public realm proposals agreed to be permitted development 
• Section 247 submitted for consent for public realm development 
• Decant of services and artefacts/equipment underway. Fit out projects for registrar and music service now on site and due to complete by end December 

E2006.B Launch grant scheme for Heritage Action Zone 31 March 2021   50% 

 
• Drake Street and South Parade Property Improvement works out to tender. Planning Permission achieved. 
• Discussions ongoing with key PSiCA property owners. 
• HAZ Project Officer post being advertised – closing date 16th October. 
 

E2006.C Prepare development brief and agree disposal of land around Tonge Hall 31 March 2021   50% 

Waiting on completion of land transfer from school, subject to SOS approval. Programme will proceed upon completion. 

E2006.D Develop long term strategy for re-use of Hopwood Old Hall 31 March 2021   50% 

P
age 30



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  7  Of  11 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

Discussions with Historic England regarding Phase 2 of emergency works ongoing. 

E2006.E Submit Stage 2 bid for re-use and adaptation of Rochdale Town Hall 30 June 2020   100% 

Stage 2 bid has now been submit. 

E2006.F Implement the ELR Growth Strategy to increase visitors and income of the East Lancashire Railway 31 December 2020   50% 

 
Further works to install signage at Heywood being progressed with Members and the ELR being progressed. Work continues to support ELR with COVID business recovery 
and financial planning and to secure external funding. To date over £800,000 secured from grants and donations to the ELR's survival fund, including £280,000 of lottery 
heritage funding secured with Council support. 

          

E2007 Provide an effective and efficient portfolio of Council assets 31 December 2020   50% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

E2007.A Implement proposals to restructure the management of the industrial estate to increase performance 30 June 2020   50% 

 
Rent for the first quarter has now been fully recovered. Rent collection for the June Quarter has increased to 94%, the September Quarter is 90%. Only four tenants have 
debts of three months or more. 
 

E2007.B 
Review the Council’s property portfolio to improve asset use, identify development opportunities and 
to realise capital value 

31 December 2020   50% 

Work in progress 

          

E2008 Maximise income for the Council 31 March 2021   41% 

          
Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

P
age 31



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  8  Of  11 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

E2008.A Minimum of 50 Council assets reviewed for potential disposal 31 March 2021   50% 

The Estates team have completed the disposal of 10 assets so far this year realising £158,000 of capital receipts.  
 

E2008.B Maximise efficient utilisation of Number One Riverside to attract third party occupiers 31 March 2021   30% 

Currently working on an opportunity to attract third party occupation of Number One Riverside. The former Sandbrook Medical Centre has been re-let to adult social care 
neighbourhood team. 

E2008.C Deliver savings targets by strategic investment in property through the Property Growth Fund 31 March 2021   25% 

None completed. 

E2008.D Provide £100,000 income through the promotion of discretionary chargeable Planning services 31 March 2021   40% 

Non-statutory fee income received during Q2 was £16,850 providing a running total of £39,521 at the end of the quarter.  

E2008.E Deliver Business Rates payable growth to secure additional £0.5m 31 March 2021   50% 

Total Business Rate income was forecast at £1.7m p.a. however the impact of Covid and retailers opening late means it's not possible to calculate this information for Q2 
as the assessments haven't taken place or been updated on the VOA website. 

E2008.F Sustain occupancy and income levels Council managed workspaces schemes 31 March 2021   50% 

 
Rental payments on main investment properties have been restructured but not reduced. Some issues of rent collection due to inability to enforce rent collection. 

          

E2009 Capitalise on our investment in regional growth 31 March 2021   75% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

E2009.A Apply for and secure minimum £10m funding for Rochdale Borough projects 31 March 2021   100% 

P
age 32



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  9  Of  11 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

During Q2 a total of £31,386,000 of devolved GM funding was secured for the Borough.  These included £10.5m of Mayor's Cycle Challenge Fund for Rochdale - Castleton 
link, £10.3m for Junction 19 link road, £4m from Brownfield Land fund for Riverside Phase 2 and Royle Road, Castleton, £2m for Chamber House solar Farm, £700,000 for 
fire station offices, £200,000 skills funding, £260,000 GM Stations Alliance and £50,000 for the Heywood tram - train pathfinder. 
 

E2009.B Submit a list of Borough projects for GM Investment Pipeline (GMIP) 31 March 2021   100% 

A list of potential housing, transport and infrastructure projects for inclusion in GM Investment Pipeline was submitted to the GMCA. Work is ongoing to prioritise these 
against GM objectives and work with Government to identify funding. 

E2009.C Submit application for Towns Fund 30 June 2020   50% 

Decision on outcome of Future High Streets Funding is awaited. Towns Fund board have identified list of opportunities and are considering submitting the bid in early 
2021 to see outcome of the FHSF bid. £1m accelerator funding bid submitted by the team and received for the Fire Station project that has to be spent by the end of the 
financial year. 

E2009.D Submit detailed business case and secure Growth Deal funding for Junction 19 link road 31 March 2021   100% 

£10.3m of Growth Deal Funding secured in July 2020 following approval of Business Case by GMCA, along with £1.75m from Highways England and a further £10m from 
the Get Building Fund secured in August. Development Agreement signed with Russell Homes in July 2020. Contractor appointed and work commenced on site in 
September. Road scheme due to complete Spring 2022. 

E2009.E 
Support GMCA in preparation of funding bids, strategic plans and strategies including:- GMSF, GM 
2040 Delivery Plan, GM 2040 Local Transport Plan GM Local Industrial Strategy 

31 March 2021   50% 

The Publication version of the GM Spatial Framework is scheduled to go out for public consultation during Autumn 2020. This will be published alongside a refreshed GM 
2040 Transport Strategy and 5 Year Delivery Plan and a Rochdale Transport Delivery Plan of local transport schemes which will either be delivered or for which funding is 
being sought. These documents will be presented to Members for approval during October 2020. Work is also taking place with the GMCA to support the delivery of the 
Local Industrial Strategy, notably to press for investment in advanced manufacturing park at Kingsway and South Heywood, public transport and clean growth projects 
such as solar. 

E2009.F 
Form public / private partnerships to support delivery of development opportunities such as Stations 
Alliance, Northern Gateway 

30 September 2020   50% 

A further £260,000 of funding has been secured from the GM Stations Alliance to progress master plans and feasibility of projects within the Rochdale Rail Corridor 
Strategy. . A Northern Gateway project manager post has been advertised with Bury. 

E2009.G Promote 10 year Growth Plan to investors and funders and develop Annual Action Plan 31 December 2020   50% 

Growth Plan published in July 2020 and has received considerable developer and investor interest. Government as well as private funding has already been secured for 
several projects listed in the Growth Plan 

P
age 33



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  10  Of  11 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

E2009.H Adopt Rail Corridor Development Strategy and develop Annual Action/Investment Plan 31 March 2021   100% 

Masterplans have been commissioned by the Alliance and nearing completion for Mills Hill, Smithy Bridge and Littleborough. Further work to develop a Master 
Programme/ Action Plan for the Rail Corridor work, including a land assembly strategy being prepared ahead of engagement with key landowners. 

          

E2010 Deliver high quality and effective services 31 March 2021   50% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

E2010.A To determine planning applications to exceed national and local performance targets 31 March 2021   50% 

Majors (target 60%) actual 100% 
Minors (target 65%) actual 83.33% 
Others (target 80%) actual 94.35% 
Building regulation full plans applications determined  
within statutory time period TARGET = 100% : ACHIEVED = 100% 

E2010.B Develop training programme for elected Members on planning matters 30 September 2020   50% 

An ongoing programme of training on legal and policy matters is being provided for Members of the Planning and Licensing Committee. A number of sessions have been 
provided and will continue to be arranged as appropriate. 
 

E2010.C 
To manage the Council’s business centres to encourage business and employment growth and to 
sustain occupancy levels 

30 September 2020   50% 

Due to COVID 19 lockdown, the Council's Managed workspaces were required to close with the exception of Globe House which remained partly open. Work taking place 
to enable safe reoccupation at the earliest opportunity. 

          

E2011 Deliver more high value and aspirational housing 31 March 2021   50% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

P
age 34



  

 

       
   

Economy Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  11  Of  11 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

E2011.A Develop an aspirational housing strategy for the Borough and pipeline of sites 31 March 2021   50% 

A Draft High Value Housing Strategy was prepared during Q1 and will be reported to Members 

E2011.B 
Work with developers to promote applications for a minimum of 50 new homes on sites for high value 
housing 

31 March 2021   50% 

 A planning application for 47 higher value homes has been submitted at the Soccer Village, Milnrow 

E2011.C 
Support implementation of the strategy by identifying a portfolio of Council assets to market for 
aspirational and high value housing 

31 March 2021   50% 

 
Sites for disposal are identified through the continual property review process which will bring forward sites for development that, dependent upon consultation 
outcomes, may facilitate high value housing. Existing sites already identified, declared surplus and being prepared for disposal in this financial year include Crompton 
Avenue, Earnshaw Avenue, Leighton Avenue. 

          

      

P
age 35



1 
 

 

Major Projects Team – Delivery Plan 20-21 

  

Project Summary  Action / Work stream  Lead  Deadline  

Rochdale Riverside 1 
(retail & leisure) 

 Undertake asset management, 
lettings and financial management    

 

 Monitoring of on-going asset management and operational 
arrangements, maintaining and securing further occupiers, 
monitoring the financial cash flow. 

 The scheme opened on Monday 6th April with M&S Food. Other 
occupiers (Next, Boots, River Island, H&M, Superdrug, Bean, Reel 
Cinema and Putt Stars) opened in June and July 

 The asset management arrangements are in place 

 October 2020: The financial cash flow continues to be monitored  

 Four additional lettings were agreed in Q2 including The Works, 
which opened in September. 

GM & SP March 21  
 

 

Rochdale Riverside 2 
(residential & Hotel) 
 

 Progress detailed design, enabling 
works and confirmation delivery & 
funding arrangements   

 Enabling Works -  complete tendering and Implementation 

 Completion of Detailed Design, submission of planning application, 
identify a viable scheme if possible, confirm the delivery & funding 
options and confirm legal/governance structure 

 October 2020: The enabling works contract will start on site in mid-
October 

 RIBA Stage 2 designs are now complete for the main scheme 
(residential, hotel, apartments). Cabinet approval secured to 
continue detailed design through to planning submission 

 Delivery and funding options are being considered. 

GM & SP March 21 
 

 

Rochdale Town Centre  
environmental 
improvements 

 Progress delivery of a range of 
environmental improvement works 
across  Rochdale town centre   

 e.g. Bell Street works 

 Undertake design work, confirm costs, prepare tender documents, 
procure contractors and complete works for a range of 
environmental improvement including Butts Avenue, Bell Street, 
Smith Street, South Parade, The Walk and other new schemes 
identified during 20/21. 

 The Smith Street paving scheme, public realm and re-modelling of 
the steps is complete.  

 October 2020: The Butts Avenue environmental and property 
improvement project will commence in November 2020 

 South Parade Property Improvement works out to tender. Planning 
Permission secured. 

GM & NB March 21 
 
 
 

 

Drake Street   Coordinate implementation of the 
Drake Street strategy and Heritage 
Action Zone 

 Coordinate implementation of the strategy in accordance with the 
approved  Delivery Plan and Action Plan to secure  the reuse of 

NB & JH March 21 
 
 

P
age 36



2 
 

vacant properties & sites and the completion of identified 
improvement schemes   

 Implementation of the Heritage Action Zone delivery plan and 
PSiCA grants to secure the repair and reuse of heritage assets, 
including South Parade 

 20/21 HAZ and PSiCA Delivery Plan agreed with Historic England 
and HAZ Board 

 October 2020: Drake Street and South Parade Property 
Improvement works out to tender. Planning Permission achieved 

 Discussions ongoing with key PSiCA property owners 

 HAZ Project Officer post being advertised – closing date 16th 
October. 

 
 

 

Town Hall & Town Hall 
Square 

 Progress delivery of the Town Hall 
and Town Hall Square projects  

 October 2020: Phase 1 out to tender, contractor to be appointed 
by December 2020 

 Planning & Listed Building consent granted for Phases 1 & 2 

 RIBA 4 for Phase 2 to be completed by December 2020 

 NLHF grant to be confirmed by October 2020 

 Public realm proposals agreed to be permitted development 

 Section 247 submitted for consent for public realm development 

 Decant of services and artefacts/equipment underway. Fit out 
projects for registrar and music service now on site and due to 
complete by end December. 

EB & ER March 21 
 

 

Heritage assets  Progress delivery and co-ordination 
of a range of heritage projects and 
initiatives across the borough  

 E.g. Fire Station Museum 

 Tonge Hall - complete land transfer, prepare development brief, 
secure planning permission, market the development opportunity 
and secure capital receipt. Prepare brief for repair works to building 
and delivery programme in dialogue with Historic England 

 Waiting on completion of land transfer from school, subject to SOS 
approval. Programme will proceed upon completion 

 Rochdale Fire Service Museum –  October 2020: Casey Group on 
site and work progressing with handover due in December. Fit out 
contractor appointed for the museum exhibition space. 
Confirmation of proposals for the adaptation, fit out and use of the 
first floor of the building and ERDF bid underway. Works to Richard 
Street and Drill Hall (ex museum) buildings will commence in 
January once the 2 tenants have been relocated. A £1m Towns 
Fund accelerator grant will support the works and has to be spent 
by end of March 2021 

 Hopwood Hall - complete emergency repair works.  Work with 
Hopwood Hall College to resolves access arrangements. Work with 
Hopwood DePree and Historic England to complete a deliverable 

NB & JH March 21 
 
 

 

P
age 37



3 
 

strategy and programme for the repair, restoration and re-use of 
the building including a review of the existing option agreement 

 October 2020: Discussions with Historic England regarding Phase 2 
of emergency works ongoing. 

 Heritage Strategy – complete the Heritage Strategy for the 
borough. 

Town centre business 
support 

 Undertake a range of economic 
initiatives to support existing & 
attract new businesses and secure 
the re-use of vacant properties, 
including a recovery plan for Covid-
19 

 Yorkshire Street strategy & Water Street strategy - develop a 
strategy to improve and re-define the role of the two streets and 
attract new investment and new businesses, and improve 
connectivity with Rochdale Riverside and the transport interchange 

 October 2020: The Yorkshire Street strategy & Water Street 
strategy will be progressed during 2020 as part of a wider 
masterplan review. 

 Review, promote and implement the Business Rates relief scheme 
and the shopfront & start up grant scheme to secure the re-
occupation of vacant properties in the town centres (Rochdale, 
Heywood & Middleton) 

 Due to Covid’19, there has been only a few enquiries have been 
received in relation to the business rates relief and the shopfront/ 
start-up grant schemes. 

 Prepare an Empty Property Strategy,  monitor vacancy levels and 
encourage bespoke actions with landlords & agents to secure 
occupation of vacant properties  

 The Empty Property strategy will be progressed during 2020 

 Liaise and engage with stakeholders and property owners to 
support the town centre economy, including liaison with Town 
Centre Management, BID Board, Early Evening Economy Board, 
Wheatsheaf Centre, Exchange Centre and the town centre recovery 
group (Covid-19) –  October 2020: work ongoing. 

JH & GM  March 21 
 
 

 

Town centre 
Masterplans 
 

 Develop a series of masterplans and 
strategies to identify development 
opportunities to strengthen the 
core functions of the borough’s 
town centres and support 
investment  

 Heywood town centre masterplan - Development of a high level 
masterplan to identify opportunities to strengthen the core 
functions of the town centre and support investment and 
development proposals 

 Masterplan presented to members and was approved by all. No 
major comments have come following the briefing. The next step 
will be to present the Masterplan to the Heywood Township Group.  

 October 2020: Updated Masterplan presented to members briefing 
on 30th September for comments.  Next period of works will involve 
engagement with local businesses and further feasibility into 
options to be progressed. 

MG & AM March 21 
 

 

P
age 38



4 
 

 Middleton town centre masterplan - development of a high level 
masterplan to identify opportunities to strengthen the core 
functions of the town centre and support investment and 
development proposals. 

 Masterplan presented to members 25/06/2020. Areas of 
development agreed. Highways implementations must undertake a 
feasibility study to prove functionality for approval by members. 
Further meetings to set in diaries with members to ensure this item 
can be progressed swiftly. 

 October 2020: Review of masterplan options ongoing following 
discussions with members. UTC colleagues are completing 
individual junction modelling of the Middleton proposals with the 
view of feeding these back into the Aimsun Model which will feed 
into the highways interventions included within the masterplan. 

 Littleborough masterplan - Development of a high level masterplan 
to identify opportunities to strengthen the town centre and 
support investment and development proposals 

 October 2020: Littleborough masterplan presented to Members, 
feedback to be incorporated into updated version. This workstream 
to be included as part of Rail Corridor work.  

 WSP are currently reviewing the masterplan and highlighting key 
interventions.  

 Highway Movement Framework - complete the review and secure 
approval of the revised Highway Movement Framework for 
Rochdale town centre. 

 October 2020: This item is still currently with TfGM who are 
running the modelling. It will be progressed during Q3. 

Calder valley 
masterplans (includes 
Station Gateway & 
Castleton Masterplan) 

 Develop a series of masterplans to 
identify development opportunities 
and other regeneration potential 
around the Calder Valley line 
stations and support investment 

 Neighbourhood Rochdale (Central Retail Park) – Agree 
Procurement process and PCSA stage with Wilmott Dixon and 
Capital & Centric, Legal and Governance Structure, Detailed Design 
& Approvals, Financial Viability and Funding & Delivery Options  

 Project team are still going through a period of negotiation and 
agreement with WD/C&C to ensure the PCSA is signed off. 
Completion is expected in Q2 

 October 2020: PCSA signed & series of design workshops arranged 
for Neighbourhood Rochdale. Unit mix and layout to be reviewed. 

 Station Gateway / Milkstone Road masterplan - Development of a 
masterplan and associated work & resource programme of physical 
improvements to create a more attractive retail and living 
environment and to secure additional private investment  

MG & AM March 21 
 

 

P
age 39



5 
 

 

 

  

 October 2020: Station Gateway work ongoing – various reports due 
from WSP for each project. Design workshops to be arranged with 
Planning, Highways and Street lighting to discuss / agree 
parameters. 

 Castleton masterplan - Development of a high level masterplan for 
Castleton to identify residential opportunities and other 
regeneration potential, and to support visitor and economic growth 
along the East Lancashire Railway between Heywood & Castleton.  

 Castleton Masterplan action plan has been finalised. Projects have 
been identified. Peter Woodhouse and AM have identified the key 
schemes with which RDA input and management will be required. 

 October 2020: Surface car park at Castleton to be progressed in 
conjunction with Bee Network scheme. 

 East Lancashire Railway - undertake a review of the Network Rail 
approved Castleton extension feasibility study and define and 
agreed scope of future.  

External funding   Prepare and submit bids for funding 
to the Future High Streets Fund and 
Towns Fund   

 Prepare and submit bids for funding to the Future High Streets 
Fund and Towns Fund for Rochdale.  October 2020: £1m 
accelerator funding bid submitted by the team and received for the 
Fire Station project that has to be spent by the end of the financial 
year. 

 Monitor future funding announcement and prepare and submit 
bids to the Future High Street Fund and Towns Fund for Heywood & 
Middleton where the opportunities arise. 

 October 2020: Future High Street Fund – the full business case was 
submitted in July 2020. A further clarification submission was 
issued in October. A decision is expected by Autumn 2020.   

 The Town Board has been established. Work continues to identify 
projects for inclusion in the Town Investment Plan as part of the 
Towns Fund   

 October 2020: Towns Fund Board have identified list of 
opportunities and are considering submitting the bid in early 2021 
to see outcome of the FHSF bid. 

GM, AB & 
JH 

March 21 
 

 P
age 40



6 
 

 

Property Team – Delivery Plan 20-21 

  

Project Summary  Action / Work stream  Lead  Deadline  

Commercial Property 
Portfolio 

 Coordinate implementation of the 
effective and efficient management 
of the commercial property 
portfolio 

 Coordinate implementation of new legal agreements and align 
rents with market level across the portfolio 

 Coordinate implementation of condition surveys and priority works 
to achieve compliance and preserve rental and capital values across 
the portfolio 

 Manage the income, expenditure and service charge budgets for 
each industrial estate ensuring compliance and effective 
monitoring. 

 June 2020: Rent increases while agreed informally prior to Covid-19 
have been put on hold. The priority has been to support tenants 
during this time and preserve income. Extensive support is being 
provided to tenants including rent deferrals where appropriate. 
Despite this rent collection of 89% has been maintained for the first 
quarter.   

 October 2020: Rent for the first quarter has now been fully 
recovered. Rent collection for the June Quarter has increased to 
94%, the September Quarter is 90%.  Only four tenants have debts 
of three months or more.  

LR, ML, 
MH & 
MN 

March 21 
 

 

Direct Development 
Projects 

 Progress delivery and co-ordination 
of a range of commercial direct 
development projects across the 
borough   

 Bradferns - secure planning permission, coordinate the 
specification and tendering of the scheme, market the scheme to 
secure tenants and future rental income 

 Progress existing opportunity sites and identify new opportunity 
sites for income generation, business growth and job creation. 

 June 2020: Planning permission has been secured for Bradferns and 
the specification has been passed to the Quantity Surveyors to 
price and start the tender process – expected start on site Nov 
2020.  

 October 2020: Expressions of interest have been issued to 
contractors to assess the construction market before progressing 
with the tender process for the Bradferns scheme 

 The Mossfield scheme, Heywood, has progressed and layout plans 
have been finalised. There is interest from national trade counter 
occupiers. 

LR, ML, 
MH & 
MN 

March 21 
 

 

P
age 41



7 
 

 

  

Environmental 
Projects 

 Progress delivery and co-ordination 
of a range of climate change 
emergency and renewable energy  
projects across the borough   

 Chamber House Solar Farm – secure planning permission, secure 
funding, coordinate the specification and tendering of the scheme, 
coordinate the delivery and operation of the scheme 

 Roof mounted solar schemes – establish scheme viability, secure 
planning permission, secure funding, coordinate the specification 
and tendering of the scheme, coordinate the delivery and 
operation of the scheme 

 Identify new opportunities for carbon footprint reduction, energy 
efficiency and renewable energy generation. 

 June 2020: A new planning application has been submitted for a 5 
MW solar panel scheme at Chamber House. The ERDF grant funding 
agreement is being produced and a draft is expected to be received 
in July. Grid connection costs are higher than expected, this has 
been escalated to GMCA who will engage with Electricity North 
West. 

 October 2020: Oldham have withdrawn from the consortium, 5 
authorities remain. The partnership agreement has been delayed to 
end of October due to their withdrawal but the funding agreement 
has been signed by RBC for a larger scheme.  

LR & ML March 21 
 

 

P
age 42



8 
 

 

Business Parks and Development – Delivery Plan 20-21 

  

Project Summary  Action / Work stream  Lead  Deadline  

South Heywood 
Employment Area / 
Junction 19 Link Road 
 

 Work with Partners and Rochdale 
Council to progress the Junction 19 
Link Road Scheme to enable a start 
on site in 2020/21     

 Secure Growth Deal Funding from the Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority (through their agent TfGM) including approval 
of a Full Business Case, completion of a Development Agreement 
between RBC and Russell Homes, and completion of Funding 
Agreements with TfGM and Highways England 

 Completion of the procurement and formal appointment of a main 
contractor for the construction of the Link Road, including a start 
on site. 

 October 2020: £10.3m of Growth Deal Funding secured in July 2020 
following approval of Business Case by GMCA, along with £1.75m 
from Highways England and a further £10m from the Get Building 
Fund secured in August.  Development Agreement signed with 
Russell Homes in July 2020. Contractor appointed and work 
commenced on site in September. Road scheme due to complete 
Spring 2022.           

RD/AM/ 
SP 

March 21 
 

 

Kingsway Business 
Park 

 Work to deliver development across 
the Business Park in accordance 
with the overall Strategic Objectives 
of the Kingsway Partnership    

 Work with Transport for Greater Manchester and Kingsway 
Businesses to secure the continuation of the Kingsway Link bus 
service for 2020/21 and beyond 

 Agree a commercially acceptable funding package and progress 
development of a medium unit scheme on Plot G and progress 
design through to planning permission 

 Work with commercial letting agents to secure tenants for 80% of 
the Logic development and other vacant units on site 

 Work to secure further development on one other plot. 

 October 2020: Kingsway Link Bus has continued to operate 
throughout Covid pandemic with good level of patronage and 
continued private sector funding contributions 

 Discussions continuing concerning the medium sized unit scheme at 
Plot G 

 At Logic, all units are now occupied or legally committed 

 £3.5m of investment has been secured from the Get Building Fund 
for the completion of the remaining highway infrastructure at 
Michael Faraday Avenue.                

RD/AM/ 
SP 

March 21 
 
 

 

P
age 43



9 
 

 

  

Stakehill Industrial 
Estate 

 Work with Canmoor and other 
landowners and occupiers to secure 
and enhance the economic 
attractiveness of Stakehill Industrial 
Estate 

 Investigate the feasibility and cost of providing off street vehicle 
parking within the estate.  

 Working with TfGM, investigate feasibility and costs of a providing 
a demand responsive link bus to serve the estate.   

 As part of a Steering Group, work with Stakehill businesses and 
specialist consultants to develop the Business Improvement District 
proposal covering Stakehill Industrial Estate.  

 Look for opportunities to extend the industrial estate to create 
further development. 

 October 2020: The BID Steering Group continues to meet and is 
chaired by a representative from the private sector. The Steering 
Group are working towards a potential vote on the BID in February 
2021. RDA’s main activity recently at Stakehill has been providing 
business support to mitigate the impacts of Covid 19.         

RD/AM March 21 
 

 

P
age 44



10 
 

Business Development Team – Delivery Plan 2020-21 

  

Work Area Summary  Activity / Output  Lead  Deadline  

Coronavirus Pandemic Provide support to businesses in 
Rochdale in response to the economic 
impact of COVID-19. 

June 2020:  

 Issued daily news bulletins for first month , then twice weekly 

 Signposted businesses to range of support from RBC and partners 

 Supported work undertaken by Public Protection in sharing key 
safety messages  

 Supported Business Rates team in payment of Small Business Rate 
Relief Grant 

 Developed and processed almost 200 grants under the 
discretionary grant scheme 

 Supported a business WhatsApp group of c. 80 businesses and 
weekly Zoom meetings with c. 20 businesses 

 Had telephone contact with 80 businesses and completed COVID 19 
surveys to gather info working with GC Business Growth Hub 

SEP 2020 

 Continued to issue Business Matters on a regular basis, with 
recipients now at 1100 

 Final grant payments made at the end of August, totalling £2.3m. 

CH March 21 

 

Lead Generation Develop and deliver marketing 
campaigns to promote Rochdale to 
companies in target sectors. 

 Work with the council communications department to create the 
materials for the inward investment campaign to achieve an up lift 
to 50 enquiries  for 25 projects   

 October 2020: Currently working with NE to develop the tender 
document for the consultants who will work with the RDA on this 
campaign.  

 

 Deliver direct mail campaigns for properties on Kingsway to 
generate 5 enquiries for D&B developments & explore how these 
campaigns can be done virtually 

 October 2020: Just about to commission a project to create a 
virtual campaign of Rochdale business parks which will then be 
used in a direct mail campaign to attract a further four D&B 
enquiries – we have already had 1 

 63.5% (131 out of 206) of the property enquiries are via a digital 
source (email via website, contact form, social media). Traffic to the 

AS  March 21 
 

 

P
age 45



11 
 

RDA website has double YTD (based on the enquiries sheet 
“source” and crossed referenced with sharpspring).  

Enquiry Handling Manage investment enquiries from 
businesses working with partners to 
provide tailored advice and support.  

 Maintain regular contact with MIDAS, Growth Company, 
commercial agents and developers. Track number of enquiries 
received, and provide quarterly updates  

 Work in conjunction with colleagues on promoting Rochdale as a 
place to do business and provide support and point of contact for 
businesses. Monitor number of successes per quarter 

 Complete Safe guarded and new job creation figures every quarter  
June 2020: 

 Received and responded to 86 enquiries in Q1, working closely with 
property agents, developers and partners including MIDAS and the 
BGH 

 There has been 9 successful investment projects receiving RDA 
support in Q1. This includes 2 Rochdale Riverside successes, these 
will be added each quarter as the retailers/leisure operators open 

 Creating 21 new jobs and safeguarding 6 jobs in Q1. Rochdale 
Riverside jobs will be included when the information is available  

Oct 2020: 

 Received and responded to 123 enquiries in Q2, working closely 
with property agents, developers and partners including MIDAS and 
the BGH 

 There have been 25 successful investment projects receiving RDA 
support in Q2. This includes Rochdale Riverside successes, these 
will be added each quarter as the retailers/leisure operators open 

 Created 261 new jobs and safeguarded 143 jobs in Q2. 

MM  March 21 
 

 

Sector Development Devise and develop projects in target 
sectors to strengthen the case for 
inward investment in Rochdale. 

 Develop Advanced Manufacturing Park proposition for the 
Northern Gateway 

 Develop Advanced Machinery Institute proposition 

 Establish and run bi-monthly manufacturing, logistics and digital 
sector groups 

 Develop proposition for Rochdale Fire Station with digital and 
creative community. 

 June 2020: Continue to work with developers on AMP at Northern 
Gateway. Value proposition work underway for AMPI and Funding 
for Business Case secured from Innovate UK. Sector group work 
ongoing with manufacturing and digital. Business plan for Fire 
Station being finalised and conversation set to be held with Richard 
Tang from Zen Internet. 

NE  March 21 
 

 

P
age 46



12 
 

 October 2020: International Benchmarking and value proposition 
completed for AMPI. A workshop has been held with industry to 
understand interest and one-to-one discussions are being held with 
the support of AMPI’s project director. Strategic discussions 
underway with partners including Zen Internet and the Business 
Growth Hub to finalise the business plan for the Fire Station. 

Location Promotion Develop an inward investment campaign 
to promote Rochdale as a business 
location regionally and nationally. 
 
 
  

 Map out investor journey and sales decision process 

 Develop PowerPoint slide deck or virtual investor programme 

 Review CRM and datasets. 

 June 2020: Strategic review of RDA’s activities and understanding 
of how Covid 19 might impact these activities undertaken, including 
potential impacts on sectors, opportunities and threats. 

 October 2020: Covid review complete and significant opportunities 
related to manufacturing identified. Expression of Interest and 
procurement process to be undertaken in October / November to 
support delivery of inward investment campaign. Zoho will be in 
place as new CRM by end of October.  

NE  March 21 
 

 

Account Management Develop strategic relations with account 
managed businesses, working with 
partners, in target sectors Rochdale. 

 Make 80 account management visits or hold virtual meetings 

 Introduce senior leaders where appropriate 

 Develop new initiatives to support and strengthen the local 
business community and embed them in Rochdale. 

 June 2020: Q1 focus has been on the response to COVID 19 and 
supporting businesses (see content above) 

 Sep 2020 – 23 businesses contacted with 11 of these being F2F 
visits 

 Some businesses new to the account management programme as 
contact had been established following the discretionary grant 
scheme  

 Hosted a Zoom event to promote electric vehicles in conjunction 
with TfGM. 

CH  March 21 
 

 

Rochdale 
Ambassadors 

Work with This is Rochdale to deliver 
local networking events and develop the 
This is Rochdale programme. 

 Deliver quarterly ambassador events – real or webinar  

 Identify,  facilitate / broker with the ‘new normal’ meetings 
between key decision makers who will affect investment decisions 
into Rochdale 

 Create assets such as talking heads videos for use in the promotion 
of Rochdale as a business location 

 Deliver positive news for Rochdale from the ambassadors achieving 
at least 12 pieces of positive PR in publications based outside the 
borough. 

AS  March 21 
 

 

P
age 47



13 
 

 

  

 October 2020: The next Ambassador event will be held on 14th 
October with GM Mayor Andy Burnham. So far 200 people have 
registered for the event 

 The creation of assets will be included in the inward investment 
campaign  

 9 positive PR stories issued for outside of the borough issued. Focus 
going forward will be to get greater coverage in the trade press and 
national coverage.   

 34 press releases were issued in total during Q2 

P
age 48



14 
 

RDA Performance Indicators 2020-21 

 

 

Performance Indicators 
Annual 
Target  

Q2 
Cumulative 

Total        
Commentary 

Number of successful investment projects receiving RDA assistance 30 26 35  Figures include the Rochdale Riverside 

scheme 

Number of jobs safeguarded by RDA assisted companies  250 143 149  

Number of new jobs created by RDA assisted companies or projects  350 261 282  

Total level of property investment secured (£) £60,000,000  57,000,000  

Amount of commercial floor space built with RDA support (sq. ft.) 200,000  200,000  

P
age 49



 

Report to Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

 

Date of Meeting 26th November 2020 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for A 

Safer and Inclusive 
Community, Cabinet 
Member for Climate 
Change and Sustainability, 
Cabinet Member for 
Quality of Place 

Report Author Ben Jorgensen 
Public/Private Document  

 

 

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21: Quarter 2 Performance 
Update 

 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. To report progress at the end of Quarter 2 (1st July – 30th September 2020) 

towards achievement of the targets contained in the Neighbourhoods 
Directorate Plan 2020-21 

 

Recommendation 

 
2. Members are asked to review the information contained within the report and 

the appendices. 
 
 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. 
 
 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, 
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be reported 
to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter.  
 
The Quarter 2 progress report for the Neighbourhoods Directorate is attached 
at Appendix 1. Actions within each appendix have been colour coded in 
accordance with the following criteria 
 
Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target 
date 
Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the 
target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control  
Green: Action completed by the target date  
Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track 
 

Page 50

Agenda Item 8



3.3 The appendix includes a commentary against actions that are showing red, 
amber or purple. 
 
 

 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4. 
 
 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21 Progress 
 
Performance Overview 
 
91% (21) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2020-21 are ongoing. 
Two further actions have now been completed. The chart below shows the 
overall performance of the Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of 
Quarter 2.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Quarter 2 Summary 
 
The electoral review of Rochdale is progressing well. Consultation and 
engagement on the proposals has now been completed with over 40 
submissions regarding the ward boundaries received by the Local 
Government Boundary Commission. Council report on proposed new ward 
boundaries was approved at Council and submit to the Local Government 
Boundary Commission. The Local Government Boundary Commission will 
conduct a second consultation phase from December to February 2021. After 
this they will provide a final decision on the new ward boundaries prior to year-
end with the new ward boundaries being implemented after the all-out 
elections in 2022. 
 

As part of the action to expand super-fast broadband to at least 25% of the 
borough through the Full Fibre to premises project it has been agreed that all 
sites will be surveyed by end of October 2020 with installation work 
commencing in November 2020. DCMS (Department for Digital, Media and 
Sport) have extended the deadline for when the grant money can be spent 

Page 51



 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 

until 30/06/2021 due to some delays caused by COVID implications to the 
wider programme. In terms of enabling the use of full fibre for residents and 
businesses ICT are currently having conversations with suppliers to look at 
how the overlay services can be procured and what products would achieve 
the desired outcome. 
 
The implementation of plans to prevent community tensions and support a 
more cohesive and integrated community have now been completed. 
Participation of several community group meetings have taken place online 
with support from Action Together e.g. Fortnightly Inclusive Messaging Group, 
Fortnightly Grassroots gathering meetings and quarterly Equalities 
Assemblies. There is approval from the RSCP (Rochdale Safer Communities 
Partnership) to introduce opportunities to layer Safer Communities priorities 
into some of these groups. 
 
A partnership has now been put in place (Public Service Reform steering 
group) to support reform activity across Council, partners and Health and 
Social Care with the main governance structures being aligned. Ongoing 
reform activity now fits within this structure. New service models, as part of the 
health and social care and voluntary sector transformation, have taken place 
with Good Help and MEAM (Make Every Adult Matter) Q1 activity being 
complete.  This has included formation of MEAM group, co-produced 
approach and draft governance with people with lived experience. Launched 
in Q2 at Good Help event and action plan in place for quarters 2-4. 

 
The existing Homelessness strategy has been successfully audited. The 
system change process has been accelerated by the extraordinary measures 
dictated by the response to Covid-19 and this has modified the parameters of 
the audit of the existing strategy. The audit is 100% complete, subject to 
changes brought about because of impending government/Covid-19 related 
changes and requirements. Phase 3, implementation of service delivery 
changes, is now ready to consult on and discussions have commenced with 
RBH regarding the possible in-sourcing of contracts. A bid for transformation 
funding is under consideration. 
 
The development of a revised Homelessness strategy is progressing. All the 
available factors that feed into the strategy have been assessed and 
quantified and we are drafting the revised strategy prior to consultation 
however, the additional factors generated by the Covid-19 response have 
necessitated a review prior to commencing consultation. The final details need 
to be developed in partnership with ACS, Children’s Services, health and 
service deliverers. Final development of the strategy will be subject to the 
outcome of contract in-sourcing discussions with RBH, which are underway. 
 

Develop and implement a strategy to tackle fly tipping more effectively 
Further research has been carried out of policies and procedures of other 
authorities in relation to the development and implementation of a strategy to 
tackle fly tipping more effectively. A number of options have been explored 
and an initial CCTV camera has been procured to be deployed at hotspots 
throughout the borough. User testing of new modules for system are 
continuing. 

Page 52



 
 
 
4.9 

 
Alternatives Considered 
 
Not applicable 
 
 

 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. None 

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. None 

 

Consultation 

 
7. Not applicable 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. Appendix 1 -  Neighbourhoods 
Directorate Plan 2020-21 Q2 
 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale OL16 1XU 

 

For Further Information Contact: Ben Jorgensen, , 
ben.jorgensen@rochdale.gov.uk 

 

Page 53



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  1  Of  13 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

 

N2001 Lead an Electoral Review to ensure areas have the recommended numbers of voters 31 March 2021   67% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2001.A Consultation and engagement on the proposals 31 August 2020   100% 

Consultation and engagement on the proposals has now been completed with over 40 submissions regarding the ward boundaries received by the Local Government 
Boundary Commission. 

N2001.B Final council report submitted to Boundary Commission 30 September 2020   100% 

Council report on proposed new ward boundaries was approved at Council and submit to the Local Government Boundary Commission the following day. 

N2001.C Final decision on the ward and councillors numbers made by the Boundary Commission 31 March 2021   0% 

The Local Government Boundary Commission will conduct a second consultation phase from December to February 2021. After this they will provide a final decision on 
the new ward boundaries prior to year-end.  

          

N2002 Plan for and deliver Census 2021 31 March 2021   75% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2002.A Confirm work programme following guidance from Office of National Statistics 31 August 2020   100% 

The Council has appointed Census Lead Officers who are in liaison with ONS about the requirements. A project plan is in development to outline the key tasks and the 
stakeholders that need to be involved. Meeting have taken place with officers earlier in the month regarding the census delivery and a timeline has been provided by 
ONS. 

N2002.B Recruitment and communication complete for census 2021 31 March 2021   50% 

P
age 54



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  2  Of  13 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

Internal officers have been informed of their roles and requirements in the delivery of the census along with the formulation of a communications plan. External officers 
provided by the ONS are currently being recruited and trained in regards to their roles. 

          

N2003 Develop new Communications Strategy 2020-23 31 January 2021   10% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2003.A Consult members and leadership to agree objectives and priorities 31 October 2020   10% 

Initial internal discussion has taken place. Consultation sessions have been delayed due to Covid-19 work commitments. 

N2003.B 
A refresh of the council’s communication strategy will be completed during 2020/21, following 
the conclusion of our current three-year plan 

31 January 2021   10% 

Initial work plan is being developed in relation to this.  

          

N2004 Expand super-fast broadband to at least 25% of the borough through Full Fibre to premises 
project 

31 March 2021   20% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2004.A 
Agree with Greater Manchester partners how benefits of super-fast broadband will be 
maximised across the borough 

31 December 2020   10% 

A meeting with Greater Manchester colleagues is arranged regarding this. 

N2004.B 
67 premises (of 99) with a public sector presence across the borough connected with full fibre to 
increase connectivity 

31 March 2021   40% 

All sites will be surveyed by end of October 2020, installation work will commence in November 2020. DCMS (Department of Culture, Media and Sport) have extended the 
deadline for when the grant money can be spent until 30/06/2021 due to some delays caused by COVID implications to the wider programme. 

N2004.C 
Enable the use of the full fibre for residents and businesses through engagement and 
appointment of a market supplier 

31 March 2021   10% 

In terms of enabling the use of full fibre for residents and businesses. ICT are currently having conversations with Suppliers to look at how the overlay services can be 
procured and what products would achieve the desired outcome. 

P
age 55



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  3  Of  13 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

  

N2005 Work in partnership to implement new community safety plan to reduce Crime and disorder 31 March 2021   28% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2005.A 
Implement new ‘Reducing Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour’ borough-wide action plan and 
strategy with partners 

30 November 2020   50% 

Draft action plan prepared. New priority group created and meeting in Oct 2020. Plans to be finalised and presented to RSCP (Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership) in 
January 2021. 

N2005.B Implement new ‘Reducing Reoffending’ borough- wide action plan and strategy with partners 31 December 2020   25% 

New NPS lead is forming a priority group. Work already under way to produce draft action plan and strategy. Meeting in Oct 2020 to review. 

N2005.C Complete Community Safety Partnership information sharing protocol with partners 31 March 2021   10% 

Basic draft produced. Awaiting capacity within IG Team to assist with reviewing in line with new legislation. On course to complete by March 2021. 

  

N2006 Implement plans to prevent community tensions and support a more cohesive and integrated 
community 

31 March 2021   100% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2006.A 
Work in partnership with the voluntary sector in the delivery of cohesion and integration 
activities to support the recovery of the borough post Covid 19 

31 March 2021   100% 

Participation of several community group meetings online with support from Action Together e.g. Fortnightly Inclusive Messaging Group, Fortnightly Grassroots gathering 
meetings and quarterly Equalities Assemblies. 
 
There is approval from the RSCP to explore opportunities to layer in Safer Communities priorities into some of these groups 

P
age 56



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  4  Of  13 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

          

N2007 Co-ordinate the roll out of Public Service Reform across the borough 31 January 2021   63% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2007.A 
Partnership put in place to support reform activity across Council, partners and Health and Social 
Care following reform benchmark exercise 

31 October 2020   100% 

Partnership is in place (Public Services Reform steering group) and main governance structures have been aligned.  Ongoing reform activity now fits within this structure.   

N2007.B 
Continued development of new service models as health and social care and voluntary sector 
transformation takes place 

31 January 2021   25% 

Good Help and MEAM (Make Every Adult Matter) service models Q1 activity is complete.  This has included formation of MEAM group, co-produced approach and draft 
governance with people with lived experience. Launched in Q2 at Good Help event and action plan in place for Qs2-4 

          

N2008 Complete roll out of integrated place teams and develop plan around future delivery 31 March 2021   38% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2008.A Complete annual citizen-led leadership challenges in partnership with GMCA 31 December 2020   50% 

Ageing in Place, MEAM and Good Help have been identified as priorities by citizens and leadership challenges are in place with associated action plans.  The MEAM and 
Good Help work has coproduced metrics in place to enable transparency when working with citizens / people with lived experience.  This includes participatory research, 
which will be undertaken during Qs 2-4.  

N2008.B 
Following pilot stages, embed place teams, as part of neighbourhood and locality working, 
demonstrably contributing to the reform and effective delivery of public services 

31 March 2021   25% 

Place Teams are established in localities in terms of case work, however, the level of integration with the local neighbourhood teams varies by place and is more 
embedded in localities where a physical provision (pre covid) has been in place.   

  

P
age 57



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  5  Of  13 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

N2009 Finalise and commence delivery of Climate Change Strategy 30 November 2020   45% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2009.A Agree priorities of dedicated budget 31 October 2020   20% 

£1 million budget for 2020/2021. Due to the impact of Covid, climate change work stalled and budget allocation used to cover other budget pressures. £50K remaining 
which will be used to cover climate post (currently out to advert). £150k will be rephased to cover initial costs of an energy post and feasibility work that will enable us to 
be part of a GMCA funding bid around de-carbonisation of public buildings. 

N2009.B Development of delivery plan to address climate change 30 November 2020   20% 

A draft action plan has been scoped which captures work that is taking place across the Council. This still requires further development to capture the impact and co 
benefits. A steering group of council officers has been established to work on this. There is still an ongoing need to turn this into a borough plan which will be owned by 
the emergency working group, which still needs to be established 

          

N2010 Transform and improve customer and digital provision 31 December 2020   38% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2010.A Final sign off and action plan in place for Rochdale Digital Strategy 31 October 2020   50% 

A draft strategy is in place, but work has been delayed in finalising due to covid-19 commitments  

N2010.B Agree future role and scope of the Council’s Customer Contact Centre 31 December 2020   55% 

Work is progressing with services and Socitm to bring together the future scope. There has been a shift away from transactional tasks, via channel shift. The emphasis 
now being more on people, engagement with new services, Health, CCG and others, has started to shape the new model of the Contact Centre. 

  

P
age 58



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  6  Of  13 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

N2011 Continue to modify the homelessness prevention strategy in line with legislative changes, GM 
and national priorities 

31 December 2020   86% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2011.A Audit existing strategy 31 July 2020   100% 

The system change process has been accelerated by the extraordinary measures dictated by the response to Covid 19 and this has modified the parameters of the audit of 
the existing strategy. The audit is 100% complete, subject to changes brought about because of impending government/Covid related changes and requirements. Phase 3, 
implementation of service delivery changes, is now ready to consult on and discussions have commenced with RBH regarding the possible in-sourcing of contracts. A bid 
for transformation funding is under consideration. 

N2011.B 
Identify strategic priorities including issues relating to housing access and supply, out of Borough 
placements and early intervention and prevention 

30 September 2020   70% 

Modifications to the strategy are directly linked to Phase 3 and as with previous Quarter, the ongoing impact of Covid and demands upon SHS has and will continue to 
restrict meaningful progress. SHS has undertaken a lead role in the promotion and development of the MEAM programme that has been adopted as good practice at GM, 
however we would mark this element as no progress. OOB placements will remain a pressure. There is increasing demand in the local housing market combined with 
ongoing covid impacts and lack of strategic planning or commitment to ensuring adequate housing supply. It is unlikely any further progress will be achieved until 
addressed at sub regional level. This issue is being raised at GM through Homelessness channels but so far has not made any noticeable impression. 

N2011.C Establish a regional Strategy sub group 31 October 2020   100% 

Groups are in place, organised by the Combined Authority. 

N2011.D Develop a revised Homelessness strategy 31 December 2020   75% 

All the available factors that feed into the strategy have been assessed and quantified and we are drafting the revised strategy prior to consultation however, the 
additional factors generated by the Covid response have necessitated a review prior to commencing consultation. Still at 75% as the final details need to be developed in 
partnership with ACS, Children’s Services, Health and service deliverers. Final development of the strategy will be subject to the outcome of contract in-sourcing 
discussions with RBH, which are underway. 

  

N2012 Modify the Council’s Housing Allocations Policy and Scheme to meet statutory requirements and 
makes the maximises the use of housing stock in the borough 

31 March 2021   45% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

P
age 59



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  7  Of  13 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

N2012.A Review of current policy and scheme to ensure it is fit for purpose 30 September 2020   75% 

The draft revised policy remains at 75% complete, however the consultation process has commenced with the RPs to ensure that their input is included in the revisions. 

N2012.B Complete phase 2&3 of Commission of business transformation study/service development 31 October 2020   50% 

Phase 3, implementation of service delivery changes, is now ready to consult on and discussions have commenced with RBH regarding the possible in-sourcing of 
contracts. A bid for transformation funding is under consideration. 

N2012.C Develop and implement quick wins from 6 agreed prototypes 31 December 2020   25% 

Quick wins programme has been delayed by the need to implement the response to Covid. 25% complete. Discussions are underway with ACS to implement the first of 
the changes. 

N2012.D 
Phase 2 – Develop consultation and implementation plans for longer term changes identified 
through Phase 1&2 

31 January 2021   75% 

Underway 75% complete and consultation underway to allow completion. 

N2012.E Review housing outcomes 31 March 2021   0% 

Review will follow implementation of the changes. 

          

N2013 Accelerated Housing Programme 31 March 2021   45% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2013.A Delivery of 4 sites of agreed annual accelerated programme to planning stage and start on site 31 December 2020   40% 

 
Discussions are underway with RPs and colleagues in Planning to assess S.106 needs across the pipeline of sites. Sites for high value housing being identified and an 
approach that will secure targeted development is being devised. 
 

P
age 60



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  8  Of  13 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

N2013.B 
Deliver recommendations and action plan from consultant study to inform approach to 
delivering higher value housing 

31 March 2021   50% 

Development of the guidance continues still at 50% but progress is being made. Details will need to be site-specific and options are being worked-up. 

  

N2014 Develop and deliver the infrastructure proposals that are required to support the Greater 
Manchester 2040 Transport Strategy which will help to support the emerging Greater Manchester 
Spatial Framework 

31 March 2021   62% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2014.A Complete Analysis of all relevant traffic modelling data 30 September 2020   75% 

The Locality Assessments are now complete and being readied for public consultation via GMCA. 75% complete. 

N2014.B Identify traffic mitigation measures 31 March 2021   50% 

Traffic mitigation schemes are continuously monitored across the network. 

          

N2015 Re-procurement of the Highway Service Term maintenance Contract 31 March 2021   25% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2015.A 
Undertake Option appraisal and Determine Scope and complete tender documentation for new 
Contract 

31 January 2021   50% 

Draft Cabinet Options report prepared for Members to agree preferred delivery. 

N2015.B Commence formal tender of the contract 31 March 2021   15% 

Still awaiting confirmation of preferred delivery. 

P
age 61



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  9  Of  13 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

N2015.C Award Contract 31 December 2020   35% 

Not Appicable at present 

N2015.D Commence new Contract 31 March 2021   0% 

Not Appicable at present 

          

N2016 Highways contributions to tackling climate change; develop and deliver the policy, strategy and 
infrastructure that will deliver on the objectives of the Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan 

31 March 2021   33% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2016.A Engage on a review of all potential EV charging sites 31 March 2021   50% 

Work continues to engage with TfGM on possible sites across the Borough as well as discussions on RBC's own interventions. 

N2016.B Develop a policy and live strategy for EV’s 31 March 2021   15% 

Work stream needs further development with Climate Change Officer. A greater understanding of the challenges has been gained since last update. 

N2016.C 
Work with all Stakeholders to ensure all signage is agreed and ready for implementation for the 
Clean Air Zone 

31 March 2021   35% 

All sign locations have now been approved. We are now agreeing the principles of a road safety audit for some of the signs 

          

N2017 Develop and implement a strategy to tackle fly tipping more effectively 31 March 2021   21% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2017.A Identify best practice in other local authorities 30 June 2020   50% 

P
age 62



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  10  Of  13 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

Further research carried out of policies and procedures. Number of different models are employed, including extensive use of CCTV or use of external enforcement 
partners. 

N2017.B Analyse data to identify contributing factors from an area/neighbourhood perspective 30 June 2020   25% 

Further research undertaken including use of CCTV, number of options have been explored and an initial CCTV camera has been procured to be deployed at hotspots 
throughout the borough. User Testing of new modules for system continuing. 

N2017.C Cabinet report on adoption of strategy and work plan 31 October 2020   10% 

Delayed. 

N2017.D Implement strategy and delivery programme 31 March 2021   0% 

Work not due till later in the year. 

          

N2018 Environmental Management Contributions to tackling climate change; develop a highway, parks 
& open space tree management strategy 

31 March 2021   32% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2018.A 
Carry out a full review of all tree assets to include mapping and full condition survey to identify 
related risks and improvement requirements 

30 June 2020   90% 

Survey of trees in parks and cemeteries completed. 

N2018.B Develop a long-term (ten year) tree assets management programme of work and related policy 30 September 2020   40% 

Officer working group set up to identify priorities and budget requirements. 

N2018.C 
Cabinet report on adoption of strategy and related policy alongside invest to save capital bid to 
enable delivery 

30 November 2020   0% 

Work not due till later in the year. 

P
age 63



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  11  Of  13 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

N2018.D Implement strategy and commence programme of works 31 March 2021   0% 

Work not due till later in the year. 

          

N2019 Develop a Green Travel plan for staff based at Green Lane depot. Implement a communications 
plan to reduce food waste. Implement measures to reduce energy consumption and reduce our carbon 
footprint at Green Lane depot 

31 March 2021   53% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2019.A 
Identify and implement schemes to encourage staff to walk, cycle, car share or use public 
transport to get to work and travel between sites 

31 March 2021   0% 

Not started due to pandemic response and guidance from government to avoid public transport use and car sharing. 

N2019.B Work with GMCA and WRAP on campaigns to reduce food waste in the residual waste bin 31 October 2020   25% 

Comms on encouraging people to home compost in place. WRAP to launch new food waste campaign end of October 2020. 

N2019.C Identify measures to help green our vehicle fleet 31 October 2020   90% 

Compliance date put back to 2021 by TfGM. Vehicle replacement programme (VRP) re-profiled due to COVID. 90% of small vans now electric. 

N2019.D 
Identify measures to increase energy generation at Green Lane depot and identified Parks/open 
space 

31 March 2021   100% 

Work completed and connected to mains on 03/10/20. 

          

N2020 Support the development and implementation of the GM Clean Air Plan to tackle nitrogen 
dioxide exceedances 

31 March 2021   70% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

P
age 64



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  12  Of  13 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

N2020.A Support TfGM with the development and delivery of other stakeholder engagement events 30 September 2020   50% 

Digital information continues to be provided to stakeholders. Statutory public consultation to commence on 8/10/2020. Further stakeholder engagement in line with GM 
delivery plan 

N2020.B 
Support TfGM with the development and delivery of the statutory consultation around the GM 
Clean Air Plan 

31 December 2020   80% 

Approval to consult via Cabinet decision. All consultation documents approved through delegated decisions. Statutory public consultation to commence on 8/10/2020 

N2020.C 
Support TfGM in the production and submission of the Full Business Case for the GM Clean Air 
Plan 

31 March 2021   80% 

Supplementary evidence notes, technical notes and case of measures have been approved for submission to JAQU via delegated decisions. 

          

N2021 Support and promote the RBC Eco-Business Pledge Scheme 31 March 2021   77% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2021.A Raise awareness of the RBC Eco Business Pledge Scheme with businesses and the general public 31 March 2021   100% 

Launch complete, digital information available on the RBC website. 

N2021.B Increase the number of businesses pledging to be Eco- Businesses 31 March 2021   33% 

Due to Covid 19, business support and advice has concentrated on covid risk assessments and covid safe operating practices. Continuing business restrictions means that 
priority is being given to covid compliance. It is expected that as BAU resumes later in the year, the promotion of the eco scheme will resume. 

N2021.C Promote and celebrate the businesses who pledge to be Eco-Businesses 31 March 2021   100% 

Participating businesses are promoted and published on the Council website – action complete. 

          

P
age 65



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  13  Of  13 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

N2022 Maintaining Statutory Compliance to our assets 31 March 2021        100% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2022.A Ensure all testing and inspection is in place to our operational assets 31 March 2021   100% 

Statutory testing/inspection 50% completed, existing energy efficiency schemes 

          

N2023 Increasing energy efficiency to our asset portfolio 31 March 2021   27% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2023.A 
Looking at new initiative ways to reduce our energy costs and promote reducing our carbon 
footprint 

31 March 2021   30% 

Added the six buildings to the GM bid for funding applications need to be in place for the beginning of November to determine the best type of efficiency for each asset. 

N2023.B Work with GM authorities on new energy initiatives including green alternatives to gas 31 March 2021   25% 

Meeting with other authorities to look at other options than gas. 

  
 

P
age 66



Document is Restricted

Page 67

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes , 18/11/2020 Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee

	6 The Challenge of Climate Change in Rochdale
	7 Economy Directorate Plans 2020-21: Quarter 2 Performance Update
	Append. 1 for Economy Directorate Plans 2020-21: Quarter 2 Performance Update
	Append. 2 for Economy Directorate Plans 2020-21: Quarter 2 Performance Update

	8 Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21: Quarter 2 Performance Update
	Append. 1 for Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21: Quarter 2 Performance Update

	10 Rochdale Market

